
 

1 
 

MINUTES 
KEY COLONY BEACH CITY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

Thursday, June 20th, 2024 – 9:40 am  

Marble Hall, 600 W. Ocean Drive, Key Colony Beach 

& via Zoom Conferencing 

 

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Prayer, Roll Call: The Key Colony Beach Regular Meeting was 

called to order by Mayor Joey Raspe at 9:40 am, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, Prayer, and Rollcall. 

Present: Mayor Joey Raspe, Vice-Mayor Freddie Foster, Commissioner Tom Harding, Commissioner Tom 

DiFransico, Commissioner Doug Colonell (via Zoom). Also present: City Attorney Dirk Smits, Building 

Official Ed Borysiewicz, Police Chief Kris DiGiovanni, Public Works Department Head Mike Guarino, 

Administrative Assistant Tammie Anderson, and City Clerk Silvia Gransee. 

 

Mayor Raspe moved the City Attorney’s report to the beginning of the agenda. 

City Attorney Dirk Smits spoke on the managerial responsibilities of the position of City Administrator and 

recommended that the position be advertised for the duties of City Administrator on a part-time basis with 

no benefits subject to a legal contract provided by City Attorney Smits. City Attorney Smits elaborated on 

his recommendation and asked for consideration by the Commission. Vice-Mayor Foster agreed and asked if 

the contract includes the waiving of FRS benefits. City Attorney Smits confirmed and stated that the contract 

will be reviewed by the Commission.  

 

2. Agenda Additions, Changes & Deletions:  

 

 City Clerk Gransee informed of the following agenda additions: 

➢ Deletion of Item 5b. and 5d. Meeting minutes from May 13th and May 16th  

➢ Under Item 8g, in addition to the proposal from Construct Build, a proposal from IDB Custom 

Builders for Sadowski Bridge repairs in the amount of $22,082.00 was received.  

➢ Addendum to Item 8h. for Commissioner DiFransico’s presentation on Wastewater invoicing. 

➢ New Item 8k: Discussion/Approval on the pursuit of Florida Opioid Allocations of Funds for FY24-

25. 

➢ Addendum under Item 12 a.(i) to the Wastewater Report 

  The Commission had no objections to the changes. 

 

3. Special Request: A special request by Luis Alonso to make a presentation to the City Commission regarding 

the transfer of building rights associated with the property located at 721 West Ocean Drive to the City of 

Marathon. 

a. Letter to the City Clerk 

b. Proposed Interlocal Agreement 

c. Preliminary Design Options 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Mr. Luis Alonso to present his special request. Luis Alonso, 

940 Shelter Bay Drive, spoke about his builder experience in the City of Key Colony Beach and Marathon. Luis 

Alonso gave the benefits of his proposal and turned the presentation over to Planner Donald Craig from the 

Spottswood Law Firm. Donald Craig informed on having prepared today’s package and gave history on his 

background as the Planning Director in Monroe County, the private sector as well as the Planning Director for 

the City of Marathon. Don Craig spoke on the proposed Interlocal Agreement recognizing the 22 units that once 

existed at 721 Ocean Drive and were destroyed by a recent hurricane. Don Craig asked that 18 units be allowed 

to be transferred to the City of Marathon and explained that these units are exempt from regulations. Don Craig 

further stated that the agreement did not require changes to the city’s Land Development Regulations and 



 

2 
 

detailed the benefits of less traffic and density reduction. Don Craig stated that the city does not have a 

mechanism for transferring the units and that Mr. Luis Alonso has approved an account of up to 100K to pay for 

staff and legal fees associated with approving an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Marathon. Don Craig 

explained that both cities, as well as the State of Florida, must approve the agreement and asked for questions 

and concerns.  

Vice-Mayor Foster asked Brian Shea, Planning Director for the City of Marathon, to elaborate. Brian Shea 

stated that the City of Key Colony Beach currently lacks the mechanism for the transfer and detailed the process 

needed to accomplish it. Vice-Mayor Foster informed having talked to City of Marathon Manager George 

Garrett, who expressed similar views. Planning Director Brian Shea stated to be happy to help with any 

ordinance changes. Commissioner DiFransico was concerned about creating a precedence that could be used in 

the future. Don Craig did not believe so and for the units to be exempt from current regulations and for the 

agreement to reflect the same. Don Craig spoke on density allocations, disagreed with Brian Shea’s statement on 

the need to create a mechanism, and gave further thought. Commissioner DiFransico voiced concerns about 

equity and other facilities in Key Colony Beach being precluded from the same type of transfer with the 

interlocal agreement. Don Craig explained that the units had been removed after being destroyed by the 

hurricane and the building's right to still be there. Don Craig talked about the Commission having to support the 

agreement first to go forward with the process. Don Craig expressed understanding with Commissioner 

DiFransico’s concern on equity and the current proposal being a stand alone approach to move ahead. Vice-

Mayor Foster commented on the prior expired agreement for 22 units and asked if approval has to be obtained 

first to go back from 16 to 22 units. Building Official Borysiewicz commented on having been in contact with 

the Commerce Department regarding the property on density and time periods passed. Building Official 

Borysiewicz explained the composition of the property and gave details on Comprehensive Plan requirements 

regarding substantially damaged properties due to natural disasters. Building Official Borysiewicz stated that the 

Department of Commerce confirmed that the 22 units can be rebuilt on lots 7 and 8 and 5 on lot 6 for a total of 

27 units.  

Building Official Borysiewicz informed that the State still must review the project.  

City Attorney Smits commented that a building permit is subject to challenge once issued.  

Vice-Mayor Foster asked for clarification on the $100,000.00 deposit. Don Craig explained available monies for 

expected expenditures. Building Official Borysiewicz stated to follow the Commission’s directive regarding 

staff requirements. Don Craig confirmed that the State must confirm the interlocal agreement and that all three 

entities must work together to agree. Commissioner DiFransico asked about the possibility of the State agreeing 

for the city not to be part of BPAS or ROGO regulations. Don Craig confirmed this to be a requirement of the 

local agreement. Commissioner DiFransico agreed for this to be mandatory in the agreement. The Commission 

agreed. Vice-Mayor Foster asked for clarification on transferring 18 units to the City of Marathon. Don Craig 

explained the transfer process and Mr. Luis Alonso’s ability to transfer to properties he owns in Marathon. Luis 

Alonso spoke of the goals of the property owners, the value of TDRs, and the transfer of value. Richard 

McChesney, representative of the applicant, asked for the Commission to entertain the idea of a reduction in 

density and to go forward to form an agreement with a lot of details having to be worked out. Vice-Mayor Foster 

stated to want to see the property developed and owners getting paid, and the process to be clean. Marathon 

Planning Director Brian Shea stated to work with the City of Key Colony Beach with direction from staff. 

Mayor Raspe asked if a development agreement is the next step in the process. City Attorney Smits stated for 

the city to draft a developer agreement to include cost recovery for staff and gave further concerns on monies 

being spent without guarantees. City Attorney Smits further talked about Development Rights and the City not 

having Transferrable Development Rights and his opinion to involve a Code amendment. City Attorney Dirk 

Smits stated that the city was in a unique position regarding critical State concerns and unknown risks, with the 

developer being at his own peril. 

Don Craig spoke on undertaking unique and difficult projects to him and to understand the risk and reward and 

nature of land development.  

Vice-Mayor Foster asked Don Craig about his request, how to proceed, and what he is looking for from the 

Commission. 



 

3 
 

Don Craig stated to be looking for a head nod from the Commission to agree for the project to be worthy of 

pursuing and to give directions to work with staff to bring something back to the Commission for consideration.  

City Attorney Smits cautioned against the unknown consequences of reducing density but advised being mindful 

of ripple effects and having the ability to cancel the agreement at any time.  

Commissioner Harding suggested that the City Attorney’s office draft a development agreement that adds risks, 

which can be canceled at any time, and brought back to the Commission for a review.  

City Attorney Smits explained current development rights within the city and his opinion that they are not 

transferrable with an Interlocal Agreement. Commissioner Harding cautioned about the city's risk of entering 

ROGO. City Attorney Smits reiterated possible risks and the need for an evaluation.  

Mayor Raspe asked about the involvement of the Comprehensive Plan.  

City Attorney Smits explained his understanding of the involvement of the Comprehensive Plan, Code of 

Ordinance, a development agreement, and the public's input. He also stated that a Town Hall meeting is a good 

way to understand what the community likes and prepare a development agreement at the Commission’s 

directive. Commissioner DiFransico gave his thoughts on residents' support of the property's development and 

consideration of the risk of ROGO and BFAS.  

City Attorney Smits informed to bring back an initial development agreement addressing the question of ROGO 

and Comprehensive Plan Amendments and to understand the ripple effects. Luis Alonso stated his objective for 

a positive agreement for the city with density reduction and a fair process. Vice-Mayor Foster reminded of the 

22 owners receiving closure to a long-standing issue. Don Craig agreed and stated to take direction as outlined 

by the City Commission and City Attorney. City Attorney Smits stated the importance of understanding that 

reimbursement will be forthcoming pursuant to a development agreement and to understand the risks to the city. 

Commissioner Colonell commented on the possibility of future lawsuits and less density leading to reduced tax 

monies. Commissioner Harding informed that income from property taxes would go up and income from 

wastewater would go down slightly but be a net benefit to the city. Commissioner Harding gave further 

explanation on the calculations. Commissioner Colonell stated that the argument be hypothetical due to the 

unknown factor of what will be built and agreed with Commissioner DiFransico’s caution on precedence. 

Commissioner Harding agreed that other properties are in the same situation and that the city has to wait for the 

State on ROGO. Commissioner Colonell agreed to go forward and explore if the agreement is feasible. Mayor 

Raspe stated for the Commission to be in agreement to pursue the matter. Mr. Luis Alonso and Don Craig 

thanked the Commission for hearing their request. 

 

4. Citizen Comments and Correspondence: Mayor Raspe informed that the City Commission reviewed all 

citizen correspondence and asked for citizen comments. 

 

Laura Palguda-Barbara stated that her mother, owner of Unit 1, asked how the city can enter into a development 

agreement if they do not own the property. City Attorney Smits explained that authorization has to come with 

the developer trying to develop the property. Laura Palguda-Barbara stated that no authorization exists and that 

this was the first time she heard about it. City Attorney Smits stated that there would be no point in going 

forward if no authority existed. Laura Palguda-Barbara advised on no authority and advised to start with the 

contract on the property.  

 

5. Approval of Minutes 

a. April 15th, 2024 – City Commission Townhall Meeting  

b. May 13th, 2024 – City Commission Townhall Meeting **deleted** 

c. May 16th, 2024 – City Commission Public Hearing   

d. May 16th, 2024 – City Commission Regular Meeting **deleted** 

 

Mayor Raspe asked for any changes to the minutes. There were none, and Mayor Raspe accepted the minutes as 

written. 

 



 

4 
 

6. Committee and Department Reports (written reports provided; Staff and Board Chairs available for 

questions) 

a. Marathon Fire/EMS – Marathon Assistant Fire Marshal Card gave the Fire Report for the previous month. 

Mike Card reported that one hazardous and five EMS calls were received during the prior month. Assistant 

Fire Marshal Card reiterated the importance of driving in the right lane and a slight uptick in accidents by 

not following the law. Mike Card informed that interviews continue for a Fire Chief and will hopefully be 

concluded soon. Marathon Assistant Fire Marshal Card updated that the grant for the Fire Boat was granted 

and talked about working on concepts for future rescues. Mike Card reminded that hurricane season had 

started and to be prepared with debris cleanup and to have propane properly stored.  

b. City Administrator’s Report – Mayor Raspe  

c. Police Department – Chief DiGiovanni  

d. Building/Code Department – Building Official Borysiewicz  

e. Public Works – Public Works Department Head Guarino  

f. City Clerk – City Clerk Gransee  

i. Update on qualified candidates for the November election 

g. Beautification Committee – Sandra Bachman 

h. Planning & Zoning Board – George Lancaster 

i. Recreation Committee – Richard Pflueger 

j. Utility Board - Bill Fahs 

 

Commissioner Harding asked Public Works Department Head Mike Guarino for feedback on storm drain 

cleaning and whether any repairs were needed. Mike Guarino reported that no repairs were needed so far.    

Vice-Mayor Foster commented on Public Works Employees cutting the Sadowski Causeway with the pole 

cutter and asked for an attachment for the tractor. Public Works Department Mike Guarino explained that the 

equipment was not working well and that another whole new piece of equipment would most likely be needed to 

complete the job.  

Commissioner DiFransico asked Chief DiGovanni for an explanation of the term ‘Watch Order’. Chief 

DiGiovanni explained that residents can request the police to watch their homes while they are away. 

 

7. Mayor-City Administrator Items for Discussions & Approvals: 

a. Update on Marble Hall, Administrative Offices, and overall progress: Mayor Raspe updated to have met 

with the K2M Engineer and to have received a proposal for the pin pilings for the lower level of the offices 

as well as preliminary cost estimates to do some of the work. Mayor Raspe deferred to Building Official 

Borysiewicz to elaborate. Building Official Borysiewicz informed K2M to modify existing plans for the 

location and amount of pin piles or foam to fill the voids under the floors. Building Official Borysiewicz 

informed having received some estimates for parts of City Hall where bids are not required including 

drywall repair, tile installation, and paint. Building Official Borysiewicz explained for these prices to be 

preliminary and to give an idea of what can be done. Vice-Mayor Foster asked about the leveling of the 

floor. Building Official Borysiewicz stated for this to be part of the bid. Vice-Mayor Foster spoke on the 

voids extending further and to prefer them to be filled with slurry or injection. 

Commissioner Colonell asked about the idea of a beam for support for the attic. Building Official 

Borysiewicz stated to have met with K2M and another engineer in consideration for a second story. Building 

Official Borysiewicz informed that both engineers advised the idea not to be cost-effective and cheaper to 

build a standalone building. Building Official Borysiewicz stated that the beam for the sagging floor is still 

under discussion stages. Vice-Mayor Foster asked what the determination was made for the idea of a second 

floor not being feasible to go to a second floor. Building Official Borysiewicz stated unknown factors of 

removing the roof, and Mayor Raspe stated that the engineers had cautioned on the idea. The Commission 

further discussed existing and future pin piles, cost-effectiveness, and use of grant monies. Commissioner 

Harding asked about the timeline for moving offices. Building Official Borysiewicz stated that this be at the 



 

5 
 

Commission’s directive and gave further information on available office space. Commissioner DiFransico 

suggested leaving staff in the trailers until all construction is completed. 

There was no further discussion. 

 

b. Discussion/Approval on providing a 20% discount for short-term boat trailer parking to first responders and 

military personnel:  

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and informed the Commission of his intention to provide a 

discount for long-term trailer parking as well. He asked for discussion and approval. Vice-Mayor Foster 

supported the idea and asked for guidance for City Hall to recognize identification cards properly. The 

Commission discussed and agreed to define the term military as active and veterans. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Mayor Raspe to provide a 20% discount for short and long-term boat trailer 

parking to first responders and active and retired military personnel. Vice-Mayor Foster seconded the 

motion.  

DISCUSSION: None. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

8. City Commissioner Items for Discussion/Approval 

a. Discussion/Approval of the final invoice by Lanier Plans, dba KorKat, for the completion of the 1st Street 

Playground in the amount of $27,261.00. 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked for a motion to approve. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to approve. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. 

Commissioner DiFransico seconded the motion.  

DISCUSSION: Commissioner Harding asked about the effort to remove tarps in case of a storm. Public 

Works Department Head Mike Guarino confirmed for it to be simple. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

Commissioner Harding informed on an upcoming grant opportunity for parks and recreation and confirmed 

for grant monies to be able to use for equipment and hardware. Vice-Mayor Foster informed on two ongoing 

grants for the use of the Pickleball and Tennis Courts. Commissioner DiFransico asked for an update on the 

Pickleball and Tennis agreement. Building Official Borysiewicz informed that an agreement was reached 

and for the bid documents to be under review prior to the release of the bid for the construction of the courts. 

Building Official Borysiewicz further informed on received donations which are being held by the Pickleball 

Club. 

There was no further discussion. 

 

b. Discussion/Approval of a proposal by Lori Lehr for Community Rating System support services to review 

the 2024 CRS Recertification and supporting documentation in the amount of 16,000.00 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item. Building Official Borysiewicz elaborated on the subject. Building 

Official Borysiewicz informed that Lori Lehr supported the city over the years with CRS and gave details on 

the current and expected future CRS discount. Building Official Borysiewicz recommended obtaining the 

services of Lori Lehr in view of his upcoming retirement and to provide a big benefit to the city. 

Commissioner Harding informed that Lori Lehr is the CRS contract person for Monroe County and stated 

for her to be an expert on the subject. Commissioner Harding verified that a draft acknowledgment was 

given for a 25% future discount effective April 2025 and confirmed for other agencies in the County having 



 

6 
 

designated personnel for CRS matters. Commissioner Harding confirmed the requirement for public 

meetings and suggested meeting on a quarterly basis. 

There was no further discussion, and Mayor Raspe asked for a motion to approve. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to approve. Commissioner Harding seconded the motion.  

DISCUSSION: None.  

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

c. Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by the Mayor/City-Administrator to offer Tony Loreno the 

position of Building Official, Floodplain Manager, and Building Inspector for the City of Key Colony 

Beach. 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item, spoke on salary and benefits, and confirmed a one-time salary 

increase for passing his licensing. Vice-Mayor Foster commented on the continued need for Building 

Official Borysiewicz, which Mayor Raspe confirmed. Mayor Raspe asked for a motion to approve. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Commissioner DiFransico to approve. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. Vice-

Mayor Foster seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: None.  

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

The Commission welcomed Tony Loreno to the city. 

 

d. Discussion/Approval of the budget calendar for FY2024/2025 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and informed on the proposed budget calendar. City Clerk Gransee 

informed that Commissioner DiFransico will not be available for the first public hearing. City Attorney Dirk 

Smits informed on quorum requirements for certain millage increases. City Clerk Gransee confirmed to 

bring the matter back to the Commission after calendar amendments were made. 

 

e. Discussion/Approval of an Interlocal Agreement between the Board of Commissioners of Monroe County 

and the City of Key Colony Beach to accept State Boating Improvement Funds (BIF) in the amount of 

$2,993.00 for the purchase of regulatory buoy replacements for FY2025. 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item.  

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to approve. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. 

Commissioner DiFransico seconded the motion.  

DISCUSSION: None.  

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.  

 

f. Discussion/Approval of a proposal by K2M for the KCB Roadway Safety Project in the amount of 

$22,160.00. 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item. Commissioner Harding elaborated on the matter and explained the 

purpose of the project to authorize the engineering firm for the 2022 FDOT Project with funding expected in 

July. Commissioner Harding informed that the city has to pay for the expenditure out of pocket for not being 

included in the original application and spoke further of the benefits of having a digital overview of the city. 

Commissioner Harding stated the engineering firm is recognized by FDOT, and once approval is obtained 

from FDOT, the project can go forward. Mayor Raspe asked for a motion to approve.  



 

7 
 

MOTION: Motion made by Commissioner Harding to approve. Mayor Raspe seconded the motion.  

DISCUSSION: Commissioner DiFransico commented on the high costs of engineering services. 

Commissioner Harding informed that engineering costs are comparable to those of other engineering firms 

and further commented on the benefits of having the data for the city. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

g. Discussion/Approval of a proposal by Construct Build to repair the Key Colony Beach Causeway 

Bridge Abutments (Bridge No. FDOT 904532) in the amount of $23,000.00 & Consideration of a 

proposal by IDB Custom Builders for Sadowski Bridge repairs in the amount of $22,082.00.  

**agenda addition** 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item in addition to the additional proposal by IDB Custom Builders. 

Commissioner Harding asked Building Official Borysiewicz for a recommendation. Building Official 

Borysiewicz informed on having confirmed with FDOT what repairs are needed above and below the water. 

Building Official Borysiewicz further informed on having met with both potential contractors on above 

waterline repairs and for the underwater repairs to be held off for now. Building Official Borysiewicz stated 

that both contractors are good, and that the only difference in consideration is that Construct Build can start 

on Monday and IDB in three weeks. Building Official Borysiewicz confirmed for both repairs in the 

proposals to be identical in responses and recommended keeping the above and underwater repairs separate. 

City Attorney Smits agreed and further advised on the use of standard form contracts. Mayor Raspe asked 

for a motion to accept a proposal. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Mayor Raspe to accept the proposal by Construct Build and to start right away. 

Vice-Mayor Foster seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: None.  

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

   Mayor Raspe called for a 5-minute break at 11:33 am. 

 

  The meeting reconvened at 11:39 am. 

 

h. Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by Commissioner DiFransico on a change in methodology 

for wastewater billing. 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Commissioner DiFransico to elaborate. Commissioner 

DiFransico gave his presentation on proposed changes for wastewater billing. Commissioner DiFransico 

gave details on a revised approach, including the need to establish EDUs, reconciliation of the city’s sewer 

users to billing, and a proposed timeline to implement changes. Commissioner DiFransico spoke on the 

importance of communication and the benefits to residents in eliminating the current inequities. 

Commissioner Harding gave concerns on costs to collect monies by the FKAA compared to the current 

internal billing. Commissioner Harding cautioned on fees for credit card uses by the FKAA and for the city 

being billed for it. Commissioner Harding explained calculations for staffing costs and stated that the city 

would be more cost-effective than FKAA. Commissioner Harding talked about residents' concerns about the 

need for an irrigation meter and associated costs and that more feedback from the public is needed. 

Commissioner Harding informed on a suggestion by another agency to buy the data from the FKAA and to 

complete the billing in-house to be more cost effective.  

Commissioner DiFransico spoke about residents who close their houses for the season and have to pay for 

usage. Commissioner Harding gave understanding but cautioned that there would not be a significant change 

in charges with a change in methodology. Vice-Mayor Foster expressed concerns about the cost of 

implementation and overall savings. Commissioner DiFransico stated that the goal is to create equity for all. 



 

8 
 

Vice-Mayor Foster cautioned on the turmoil of the last couple of years and the topic having to be looked at 

from a business perspective in addition to other factors. Commissioner Harding explained the charge for 

washing machines in Condominiums. Vice-Mayor Foster asked Commissioner DiFransico about his intent 

for today’s request. Commissioner DiFransico requested approval to go forward with the implementation of 

the program as described in his term sheet. Commissioner Harding suggested not to concentrate on the 

commercial aspect but on the residents' concerns on irrigation costs. Commissioner Colonell commented 

that more information is needed and cautioned that the cost might outweigh the benefits. Commissioner 

Colonell gave further concerns on the possibility of purchasing water meters and questioned the equity of 

injuring one resident to benefit another.  

Commissioner DiFransico gave understanding to Commissioner Colonell’s comments. 

Mayor Raspe agreed with Commissioner Colonell and wished for more information, not knowing if the cost 

was worth it. 

Vice-Mayor Foster suggested waiting until the Community returns for the season to hold Town Hall 

meetings for residents' input. The Commission agreed to hold off on the matter until the first Town Hall 

meeting in November. 

 

i. Discussion/Approval of an agreement between the South Florida Police Benevolent Association and 

the City of Key Colony Beach. 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Andrew Axelrod, General Counsel for the South Florida 

Benevolent Police Association, to elaborate. Andrew Axelrod reported that negotiations, after going on for 

almost a year, concluded, and a collective bargaining agreement was reached. Andrew Axelrod and thanked 

the Commission, Chief, and staff for their received support. Stephen Stahl, President of the South Florida 

PBA, commented on the city making an investment into public safety and the importance of the police in 

times of need. Stephen Stahl spoke of a good working relationship and stated to hope to reach a positive vote 

on the matter.  

Mayor Raspe stated that the Commission had reviewed the agreement in a prior closed session, and some 

minor tweaks were looked at with no major differences. Mayor Raspe stated to make a motion to pass the 

agreement as ratified by the SFPBA in the morning.  

 

MOTION: Motion made by Mayor Raspe to approve. Vice-Mayor Foster seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: Commissioner Harding commented on a cooperative agreement and was impressed with the 

end result. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

j. Discussion/Approval of the following recommendations by the Utility Board regarding Solar Power: 

i. Continued Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by the Utility Board to offer the power 

company the installation of solar panels on city owned buildings as discussed in the Utility Board 

meeting on April 23, 2024.  

• Update by Commissioner DiFransico on conversations with the FKEC 

 

Commissioner DiFransico informed the FKEC not to be interested in the proposal and informed to be in 

conversations with Solar Firm SALT and to bring back more information the following month. 

  The matter was tabled until the following month. 

 

Commissioner Harding reminded of grant opportunities and the importance of a proposed project being 

aesthetically pleasing for residents. Commissioner DiFransico agreed that there are many opportunities for 

solar installation and that it is important to understand possible costs. 

 



 

9 
 

ii. Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by the Utility Board to recommend to the City 

Commission the use of a referendum, either binding or non-binding, should the proposal under 8f(i) 

not be acceptable to the City Commission. **tabled** 

 

k. Discussion/Approval for the pursuit of Florida Opioid Allocations of Funds for FY24/25. 

**addendum** 

 

 Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item. Commissioner Harding gave the background on the opioid funding 

and corresponding filing deadlines. Commissioner Harding explained estimated funds and opportunities provided 

through the funding, including education, wellness, and support services.  Commissioner Harding gave additional 

details on the annual funding opportunity and data on opioid abuse in Monroe County. Commissioner Harding 

stated the purpose of the discussion is to evaluate to participate in the funding. Mayor Raspe asked for a motion to 

approve.  

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to deny the funding request. 

DISCUSSION: Vice-Mayor Foster supported the safe disposal of morphine for in-home care patients but not the 

administrative costs. Chief DiGiovanni informed that the Police Department is receiving Narcan from the Fire 

Department, and the Sheriff’s office has a secure drug disposal in its lobby. Commissioner Harding agreed with 

giving support to the local sheriff’s office and utilizing the sheriff’s resources. 

MOTION: Mayor Raspe seconded the motion to deny. 

FURTHER DISCUSSION: None. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

9. Ordinances & Resolutions  

SECOND/FINAL Reading of Ordinance 2024-490: An Ordinance Of the City of Key Colony Beach, Florida; 

amending Chapter Fifteen of the Code of Ordinances, entitled Stormwater Utility System; and providing for 

codification; repealing any inconsistent provisions; providing for severability; and providing an effective date. 

a. Ordinance 202-490 

b. Business Impact Statement 

c. Proof of Publication 

 

Mayor Raspe provided the final reading of the Ordinance. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Commissioner Harding to approve. Vice-Mayor Foster seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: None.  

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

City Clerk Gransee informed of the Ordinance having been adopted. 

 

10. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 

a. May 2024 Financial Summary: Commissioner Harding provided the May Financial Report with no 

significant concerns on accounts. Commissioner Harding reported expecting some limited funds to roll over to 

2025 and gave further data on revenue vs. expenses. Commissioner Harding informed for a draft budget to be in 

place and to be working on a 5-year capital plan. 

Commissioner Harding reported on Wastewater accounts revenues being above budgeted target and expenses 

below. Commissioner Harding informed a 5 % increase in Sludge hauling expenditures and Electricity costs to 

track lower this year due to lower natural gas prices and to monitor capital expenses for upcoming larger 

projects. 

Commissioner Harding informed on Stormwater Grants reimbursements for May and further talked about 

anticipated upcoming FDOT approvals. 



 

10 
 

 

b. Approval of Warrant 0524 in the amount of $525,029.99 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to approve the warrant. Commissioner Harding seconded the 

warrant.  

DISCUSSION: None. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approvals.  

 

11. City Attorney’s Report 

a. Update on the position of an Executive Assistant to the Mayor/City-Administrator **see under 1** 

 

12. Commissioner’s Reports & Comments 

a. Commissioner Harding 

i. Wastewater Sampling Summary Report for June 17th, 2024  

 

Commissioner Harding informed of a significant increase in Covid in the city as well as the rest of the State. 

Commissioner Harding reported no increases in influenza and minor increases in RSV. 

 

ii. Gas Tax Interlocal Agreement update: Commissioner Harding attended the bi-annual meeting for the 

interlocal gas tax agreement and explained how the tax is calculated. Commissioner Harding also 

informed about the next tax recalculation in 2027 and an additional 5 cent tax not to be recalculated 

until 2030 in correlation with census data. 

 

iii. Monroe County EV Grant update: Commissioner Harding reported attending a meeting on EV 

charging and a County’s request for federal government charging stations. Commissioner Harding 

informed of the filing deadline for the city to join the county’s application and recommended not to 

pursue the grant. 

 

b. Commissioner DiFransico: Nothing further. 

c. Commissioner Colonell: Nothing further. 

d. Vice-Mayor Foster: Vice-Mayor Foster asked Commissioner Harding to review the monthly cost for the 

CPA. Commissioner Harding informed that the former Utility Clerk’s role had been absorbed by the City 

Hall staff and the CPA accountant. Commissioner Harding informed on the current contract with the CPA 

accountant and did not anticipate lower CPA costs unless with the hiring of a salaried position for Utility 

work. Vice-Mayor Foster informed that the Sludge Hauling contract with the city has expired and gave 

concerns on the correct certification on license requirements. Vice-Mayor Foster informed on changes in 

dumping locations and anticipated increases in fees. Vice-Mayor Foster informed of attending the 

Governor’s conference alongside Chief DiGiovanni. 

e. Mayor Raspe: Mayor Raspe asked City Clerk Gransee for an election update. City Clerk Gransee reported 

that the qualifying period for the upcoming elections ended, and all four Commissioners up for election had 

qualified and ran unopposed. 

 

13. Citizen Comments: None. 

 

14. Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 12:44 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted,                                                    ADOPTED:  August 15, 2024 

Silvia Roussin                                        Silvia Roussin 
City Clerk                                                                          City Clerk 
 








































































